
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

August 01, 2022 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  August 01, 2022 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 
This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

 

Please silence cell phones. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

August 01, 2022; 7:00 PM 

New Camden Public Library 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

 

 Call to Order 

ITEM  Closed Session - Consultation with County Attorney (Attorney-Client Privilege) 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Pastor Boyce Porter, Geneva Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Vidant Health - Dymond Scott 

B. Trillium Annual Report - Bland Baker 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Zoning Map Amendment - Amber Curling 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  August 01, 2022 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

B. Ordinance Text Amendments - Amber Curling 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Resolution 2022-08-01 Appointing Kyle Breslin as Plat Review Officer 

C. Proposal to Purchase Real Property 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tourism Development Authority 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022 

B. Budget Amendments 

C. School Budget Amendments 

D. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

E. DMV Monthly Report 

F. Tax Collection Report 

G. Surplus Property 

H. Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults Annual Agreement 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Vidant Health - Dymond Scott 

 

Attachments: Vidant Health CHW Services (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Ms. Dymond Scott, the Vidant Community Health Worker assigned to Camden County, will 

present the resources and services available through her office.   

4.A

Packet Pg. 4



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

id
an

t 
H

ea
lt

h
 C

H
W

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 (

33
61

 :
 V

id
an

t 
H

ea
lt

h
 -

 D
ym

o
n

d
 S

co
tt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.B 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Trillium Annual Report - Bland Baker 

 

Attachments: 2021 Annual Report Camden County (002)

 (PPTM) 

 
Summary: 

Mr. Bland Baker will present the annual report from Trillium.   

4.B

Packet Pg. 6



Transforming Lives

TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 

ANNUAL REPORT CAMDEN COUNTY

BLAND BAKER, BA

NORTHERN REGIONAL DIRECTOR

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



TRILLIUM UPDATE

Trillium’s mission:  Transforming lives and building 
community well-being through partnership and 
proven solutions.       

ó Who We Are

ó Medicaid Transformation Changes

ó Organizational changes 

ó County Data

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Who We Are - Numbers

ó 28 Counties, but numbers are from last fiscal year with 26 
counties

ó 1,469,101 total population 
ó 244,075 Medicaid Eligible
ó Served 58,452 individuals from mild to severe mental health 

needs
§ 70% with MH needs
§ 20% with SUD
§ 10% with IDD

ó Approximately 500 Providers
ó $475,921,857.00 spent on services last year
ó Smallest County- Tyrrell 3,665- Largest County -New 

Hanover 238,907
ó Cover over 12,000 square miles

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Three Regions

REGION POPULATION
SQUARE 

MILES
# OF 

COUNTIES

Northern 252,211 4,235 11

Central 494,312 4,717 9

Southern 797,086 5,063 8

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Medicaid Transformation- Standard Plans

ó Standard Plan- 5 companies were awarded
¡ Amerihealth Caritas NC Inc.

¡ Blue Cross Blue Shield of NC

¡ UnitedHealthcare of NC Inc. 

¡ WellCare of NC Inc.

¡ Carolina Complete Health- covers regions 3, 4 and 5

v These Plans are managing the mild to moderate 
Medicaid behavioral health recipients

They started on July 1st 2021

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan:

ó 7 of 7 LME/MCO’s were awarded to become Tailored 
Plans

ó 1 of the 7 - Cardinal Innovations, decided to merge with 
Vaya, so we will have 6 Tailored Plans

ó Cardinal covered 20 counties, 11 of them decided to go 
to other MCO’s besides Vaya, including Halifax county 
to Trillium, which occurred on December 1st 2021

ó Bladen county requested to join Trillium from 
Eastpointe and that took effect on Feb. 1st 2022

ó Original date to go live with the Tailored Plan was 
moved from July 1st, 2022 to December 1st 2022.

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Behavioral Health I/DD Tailored Plan Regions

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan 
Continued

ó We will have a readiness review late summer

ó Dec. 1st 2022- Begin the Tailored Plan managing 
Severe Behavioral Health, Substance Use and I/DD 
population like we do today, but in addition 
managing individuals physical health

ó We are contracting with a Pharmacy Benefits 
Manager to oversee contract with approximately 
2000 pharmacies

ó We are also going to be contracting with all Primary 
care agencies that serve individuals on Medicaid

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Organizational Changes

ó Leza Wainwright retired and Joy Futrell is our new 
CEO

ó Richard Leissner moved to a new job, so Senitria
Goodman is our new General Council

ó Sue Ann Forrest is our new Director of Government 
Relations

ó We have had to move staff because of the Tailored 
Plan requirements

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Organizational changes continued:

Call Centers
ó Pharmacy

ó Provider

ó Nurse

ó Current Call Center

Care Management
ó Whole Person Care

Disaster Response Unit
ó Meeting with Emergency Management Departments

ó Collection of Providers Disaster Response Plans

ó Map to Readiness- before, during and after a Hurricane

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Project Updates

ó Naloxone kits

ó Mobile Clinics

ó Tribal Engagement

ó Family Navigators

ó Co-Responder Pilots

ó CFAC adding a representative with TBI

ó Healing Place in New Hanover

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Consumers served in Camden County

Total Consumers served – 213

ó Mental Health – 148

ó Substance Use – 51

ó I/DD – 41

Total is unduplicated, since a single individual may receive services in more than one 
category

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



Transforming Lives

QUESTIONS?

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 (
00

2)
  (

33
58

 :
 T

ri
lli

u
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 B
la

n
d

 B
ak

er
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Rezoning Request - Amber Curling 

 

Attachments: 1_AgendaSummary_SawyerRezoningPH (DOCX) 

2-SawyerRezoningStaffReportPH (DOCX) 

3_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication (PDF) 

4_Deed9AcresSection (PDF) 

5_Deed872Hwy343 (PDF) 

6_SawyerRezoningNeighborhoodSummary (PDF) 

7_ZoningComparison (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 20



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   August 1, 2022 

 

Attachments:   Sawyer Rezoning Staff Findings, Application, Site Plan, Zoning Comparison, 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary, Deed, Ordinance, Resolution to amend CAMA 

Land Use Map 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Application for Zoning Map Amendment from Waverly Sawyer 

 

Summary: 

 

Waverly Sawyer has requested a zoning map amendment for approximately 10 acres from the Highway 

Commercial (HC) Zoning District to the Neighborhood Residential (NR) Zoning District.  The 10 acres 

consist of an approximately 1-acre parcel at 872 NC Hwy 343 N and approximately 9 acres from an 

adjoining parcel to the north west.  Both parcels are located in South Mills Township. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map.  The CAMA Future 

Land Use Maps has the majority of property identified as Low Density Residential.   

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map 

which identifies the parcels as Rural Preservation. 

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on April 12, 2022.  On July 20, 2022, the Planning Board 

unanimously recommended denial of the rezoning request. 

 

Recommendations:   

 

Motion to approve Consistency Statement: 

 

The requested zoning change is inconsistent with Comprehensive Future Land Use Maps which 

identifies the property as Rural Preservation, residential use with a maximum density of one dwelling 

unit per 5 acres.  The requested zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Plan 

which identifies the majority of the property as Low Density Residential (on lots 1 acre or greater).   

 

Motion for denial: 

 

Motion for denial of the Ordinance 2022-08-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2022-06-09) for the two 

parcels of property, approximately 10 acres from Highway Commercial (HC) to Neighborhood 

Residential (NR). 

 

Reasonableness Statement for denial: 

 

The requested zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Plan which 

identifies the majority of the property as Low Density Residential of 1-2 acres or greater and 

with the Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan which identifies the property as Rural 

Preservation residential lots of 5 acres and greater. 

 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
P

H
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

UDO# 2022-06-09 

Ordinance 2022-08-01 

 Zoning Map Amendment  

for Sawyer Property on HWY 343 N 
 

 

Project Information: 

 

File Reference: 2022-06-09 

Project Name:           N/A 

PIN:    01-8907-00-43-8620-0000 

Applicant:               Waverly M. Sawyer  

Address:                 117 Havenwood Drive 

                                 Camden, NC, 27921 

Phone:  252-202-2882 

Email:  waverly702@gmail.com 

 

Agent for Applicant:  same as above  

Address:    same as above     

 

   

 

Current Owner of Record: Waverly M. Sawyer 

and Linda B. Sawyer  

 

Meeting Dates: 

April 12, 2022  Neighborhood Meeting 

July 20, 2022  Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: June 14, 2022 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00 Ck# 7717 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use and CAMA Land Use 

Plan Suitability Maps 

D. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

E. Zoning Comparison: Highway Commercial 

(HC) to Neighborhood Residential (NR) 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Request:  Waverly Sawyer is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment per Article 151.2.3.30 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance for a total of 10 acres from Highway Commercial (HC) to 

Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district. 

 

Location Description: The 10 acres consist of an approximately 1-acre parcel at 872 NC Hwy 343 N 

and approximately 9 acres from an adjoining parcel to the north west.  The parcel ID for 872 Hwy 343 N 

is 01-8907-00-43-8620-0000.  The parcel ID of the approximately 9-acre parcel is 01-8907-00-65-3412-

0000.  Both parcels are located in South Mills Township.  

  

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Rezoning from Highway Commercial Zoning District (151.3.6.5): 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, 

US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as 

large floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic. The district also 

accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special 

use permit. New development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral 

vehicular and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-

connected transportation system. New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along 

the major roadway, or is fully screened from view. Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot 

lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and 

multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5 

Development Standards. 

 

Rezoning to Neighborhood Residential Zoning District (151.3.5.5) 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

 

SITE DATA 
 

Size of Lots:   Approximately 1 acre and 9 acres for a total of approximately 10 acres 

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Highway Commercial (HC) 

Existing Land Uses:  1-acre Office/Retail property and 9 acres is farmland 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 Northeast Northwest Southwest Southeast 

Zoning Working Lands (WL) Working Lands (WL) Working Lands (WL) Working Lands 

(WL) 

Use Farmland  Church and 

Residential Lots 

Farmland Residential 

Lot 

Farmland 

 

Proposed Use(s) – The proposed use is residential development. 

 

History of property:  

Ordinance No. 2019-10-01 rezoned the 10 acres from Working Lands to Highway Commercial.   The 

purpose of this rezoning was due to existing business and future plan.  The 1-acre site was previously 

used as a business, but is currently vacant. The 9-acres site is part of a larger parcel which has been used 

as farmland and would need to be subdivided. 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Vicinity Map – NC Hwy 343 N in South Mills Township 

 
 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Zoning Districts: 

    

Neighborhood 

Residential 
Working 

 Lands 

Working 

 Lands 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Land Suitability: 

 

Moderate in Land 

Suitability 

Very Low in Land 

Suitability 

Very High in 

Land Suitability 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

 

Watershed Map  

 

  

Property in the 

Watershed 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Wetlands Map  

 
 

Not located in the Wetlands 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Floodplain Map  

 

        

 Located in Flood Zone X 

Flood Zone  

AE 

Flood Zone  

Shaded X 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

 Drainage -It appears the property drains to Pasquotank River. 

 
 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Comprehensive Future Land Use Map  

 

  
 

Rural Preservation 

Rural Preservation 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 

Low Density 

Residential - 1 

acre or greater) 

Conservation 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Water and Sewer Map 

 

Water and Sewer lines are adjacent to property 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

Goal when Reviewing of Zoning Regulations in accordance with the Camden County Land Use Plans is 

to make sure the project is designed to: 

• to lessen congestion in the streets;  

• to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 

• to promote health and the general welfare; 

• to provide adequate light and air;  

• to prevent the overcrowding of land; 

• to avoid undue concentration of population; and  

• to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools parks and other 

public requirements 

 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along Hwy 343 N 

Sewer:  Sewer line located adjacent to property along Hwy 343 N 

Fire District:  South Mills Fire District  

Schools:  Proposed rezoning may have an impact on Schools  

Traffic:  Proposed rezoning may have on traffic 
 

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Map has the 

property identified as Low Density Residential (on lots 1 acre or greater). Neighborhood Residential 

(NR) zoning permits a minimum lot area of 40,000 square feet, which is less than 1 acre.  

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

   

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the parcel to be Rural 

Preservation. Rural Preservation promotes the continued use of working lands and protection of 

environmentally sensitive lands from more intense development.  The Plan also states Rural 

Preservation to be very low residential use with a maximum density of one dwelling unit per 5-acres. 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning permits a minimum lot size of 40,000 square feet, which is 

less than 1-acre in area.  

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 Property abuts NC Hwy 343 N 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 

 
 

 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER: 

 

1.  Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?   

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  In the appropriate location Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district works well.  

Neighborhood Residential 3.08% Camden 1.69% South Mills 2.47% Courthouse 5.97% Shiloh 

 

2.  Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning: There is other land in the County which is currently zoned as Neighborhood Residential 

(NR) or which could be rezoned as such and not be in conflict with the CAMA Future Land Use Plan or 

the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

3.  Is the request in accordance with the Camden County land use plan? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning: The request is not in accordance with the Comprehensive and CAMA Future land use plans.  

The Zoning Comparison included in the package identifies specific uses for each zoning district. 

 

4.  Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water 

services, other utilities? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public services. The specific service and 

to what extent of the impact will be determined during the development approval process of the property. 

 

5.  Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire 

protection or the school system? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning: The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public services. The specific service and to 

what extent of the impact will be determined during the development approval process of the property. 

 

6.  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will result in lessening the enjoyment 

or use of adjacent properties?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All permitted uses in the requested zoning classification should not lessen the enjoyment or 

use of any adjacent properties. 

 

7.  Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, 

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances. 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

8.  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of 

precedents, or need for this type of use? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning: There does not appear to be any serious legal concerns related to spot zoning, hardship, or 

violation or precedents. 

 

9.  Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The request does not impact a CAMA Area of Environmental Concern. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 
Staff supports the Planning Board unanimous recommendation for denial of the Ordinance 2022-08-

01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2022-06-09) for the two parcels of property, approximately 10 acres 

from Highway Commercial (HC) to Neighborhood Residential (NR). 

 
The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which 

has the property identified as Low Density Residential (on 1-2 acre or greater lots).  

 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2012 County’s Comprehensive Future 

Land Use Map which has the property identified as Rural Preservation (on 5 or greater acre lots).  

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_Z
o

n
in

g
M

ap
A

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_Z
o

n
in

g
M

ap
A

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_D
ee

d
87

2H
w

y3
43

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_D
ee

d
87

2H
w

y3
43

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_D
ee

d
87

2H
w

y3
43

  (
33

57
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



From: Waverly Sawyer
To: acurling@camdencountync.gov
Subject: [External] 872 N. 343 REZONING REQUEST
Date: Thursday, April 14, 2022 9:06:47 AM

Letters were mailed March 22,  2022 to adjoining property owners.  The letters gave intent and
an illustrative map.  Questions or comments were welcomed.  None were received.  Also, 
notice of a 6:00 pm meeting on April 12,  2022 at the Historic Camden Courthouse was
included in the letter.  None of the Addressed Parties attended the April 12 meeting.

Those present were:
Waverly M. Sawyer
Linda B. Sawyer
Camden County Planning Staff

           W. Sawyer

The sender (gmail.com) is outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Protected by PhishProtection. When you click on a link in the email above, the destination
website will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat or suspicious content is
detected, you will see a warning.

5.A.f

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)

mailto:waverly702@gmail.com
mailto:acurling@camdencountync.gov


Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

Agricultural
AGRICULTURE/HORTICULTURE

All Agriculture/ Horticulture Uses P

ANIMAL HUSBANDRY

Animal Husbandry Uses (excluding stockyards and slaughterhouses)

Stockyard/Slaughterhouse

AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT

Agricultural Research Facility P

Agri-Education/ Agri-Entertainment S

Distribution Hub for Agriculture Products P

Equestrian Facility S

Farm Machinery Sales, Rental, or Service S

Farmers Market P

Roadside Market P

Residential
HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES

Bungalow Court

Duplex

Live/Work Dwelling

Manufactured Home - Const After 6-15-1976 P

Manufactured Home or Mobile Home Park

Mobile Home - Const Prior to 6-15-1976

Multi-Family S

Pocket Neighborhood P

Quadraplex P

Single-Family Attached S

Single-Family Detached P

Triplex P

Upper Story Residential P

GROUP LIVING

Dormitory S

Family Care Home P

Group Home S

Rooming House S

Page 1 of 5

5.A.g

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

Institutional
COMMUNITY SERVICES

Community Center P

Cultural Facility S

Library P

Museum P

Senior Center P

Youth Club Facility P

DAY CARE

Adult Day Care Center P

Child Care Center P

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES

Major S

Moderate P

Minor P P

GOVERNMENT FACILITIES

Government Office P

Government Maintenance, Storage, or Distribution Facility P

HEALTH CARE FACILITIES

Drug or Alcohol Treatment Facility S

Hospital S

Medical Treatment Facility P

INSTITUTIONS

Assisted Living Facility S

Club or Lodge P

Halfway House S

Nursing Home S

Psychiatric Treatment Facility S

Religious Institution P

PARKS AND OPEN AREAS

Cemetery S S

Community Garden P

Park, Public or Private P S

Page 2 of 5

5.A.g

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police, Fire, or EMS Facility P S

Correctional Facility

Security Training Facility

TRANSPORTATION

Airport

Helicopter Landing Facility S

Passenger Terminal, Surface Transportation S

UTILITIES

Utility, Major P S

Utility, Minor P P

Commercial
ADULT AND SEXUALLY-ORIENTED BUSINESSES

All Adult and Sexually-Oriented Businesses

ANIMAL CARE

Major P

Minor P

EATING ESTABLISHMENTS

Restaurant, Major P

Restaurant, Minor P

Bar, Nightclub, or Dance Hall S

OFFICES

Major S

Minor P

PARKING, COMMERCIAL

All P

PERSONAL SERVICES

Major P

Minor P

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, INDOOR

Major P

Minor P

Page 3 of 5

5.A.g

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, OUTDOOR

Major S

Minor P

Firing Range

Water-Related Uses

RETAIL SALES

Flea Market S

Grocery Store P

Major P

Minor P

STORAGE, COMMERCIAL

Major P

Minor P

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Antenna Collocation (on a Building) P

Antenna Collocation (on a Tower) P

Small Wireless Facility P

Telecommunications Tower, Freestanding S

Telecommunications Tower, Stealth P P

VEHICLE ESTABLISHMENT

Major P

Minor P

VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS

Bed and Breakfast

Campground S

Hotel or Motel S

Industrial
EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY

All

INDUSTRIAL SERVICES

Contractor Service P

Crabshedding

Fuel Oil or Bottled Gas Distributor

General Industrial Service and Repair S

Heavy Equipment Sales, Rental, or Service P

Research and Development P

Page 4 of 5

5.A.g

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

MANUFACTURING AND PRODUCTION

Manufacturing, Heavy

Manufacturing, Light P

POWER GENERATION

Solar Array S S

Wind Energy Conversion Facility S

WAREHOUSE AND FREIGHT MOVEMENT

All P

WASTE-RELATED SERVICES

Incinerator

Land Application of Sludge/Septage

Landfill

Public Convenience Center or Transfer Station P

Recycling Center P

Salvage or Junkyard

Waste Composting Facility

WHOLESALE SALES

Major P

Minor P

Page 5 of 5

5.A.g

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
57

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Ordinance Text Amendments 

 

Attachments: 20220801_AgendaSummary_TextAmendments

 (DOCX) 

UpdatesToOrdinanceForTextAmendments_8-1-22

 (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 54



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   August 1, 2022 

 

Attachments:    Ordinance 2022-08-02 for Text Amendments 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Text Amendments to Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 

Summary: 

 

The attached proposed text amendments to the Camden County Ordinances is divided into three sections 

as follows: 

 

Part 1:  The first section is a text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance 151.3.8 to comply 

with FEMA 2020 model Ordinance updates and continue the Community Rating System.   

 

Part 2:  The second section is a proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance 

Article 151.3.8.3 Stormwater Management Plan Requirements and Division 9 of the Stormwater 

Drainage Design Manual to provide updates on the drainage plan requirements in the Special Flood 

Hazard Area (AE Flood zone).   

 

Part 3:  The third section is a proposed Wastewater Text Amendment to update the Sewer Use 

Ordinance and the Unified Development Ordinance to comply with the Camden County Future Land 

Use Plans. 

 

The Planning Board voted on July 20th unanimously to recommend approval. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion 

Approve Ordinance 2022-08-02 Part 1 Special Flood Hazard Area Text Amendment to 

comply with the FEMA Community Rating System requirements. 

 

The proposed text amendment provides mandatory updates to the floodplain management 

practices of Camden County to remain in compliance with the FEMA Community Rating 

System requirements.  It is merely a legislative mandate to remain valid in the County’s 

exercise of authority to set standards & specifications. 

 Approve Ordinance 2022-08-02 Part 2 Special Flood Hazard Area Text Amendment 

The proposed text amendment for an additional design option in the AE Flood zone (100-

year flood) provides clarity to stormwater management plan requirements. 

 Approved Ordinance 2022-08-02 Part 3 Wastewater Text Amendment 

The proposed text amendment requiring sanitary sewer connection supports the County’s 

growth Management Plan for sewer system development. 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
20

80
1_

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
56

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 -
 A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



Ordinance No. 2022-08-02 
An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County Code of Ordinances 
Camden County, North Carolina 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as follows: 
 
Article I:  Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances of Camden 
County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and 
subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden 
County Code. 
 
Article II:  Construction 
 
For purposes of this Ordinance, Article III relates to substantive changes required by the new General Statute 162A-
213 in which underlined words (underline) shall be considered as additions to existing Ordinance language and 
strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be considered deletions to existing language. New language of proposed 
ordinance shall be shown in italics, underlined, and highlighted (italics). 
 
Article III:   
 
Part 1:   
Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 Article 3.8.3 Special Flood Hazard 

Area Overly as follows: 
 

151.3.8.3.B. General Provisions  
1. Lands to which this Subchapter Applies  
This subchapter shall apply to all special flood hazard areas within the County.  
2. Special Flood Hazard Area Identified  
The Special Flood Hazard Areas are those identified under the Cooperating Technical State (CTS) Agreement 
between the State of North Carolina and FEMA in its FIS dated December 21, 2018, for Camden County and 
associated DFIRM panels, including any digital data developed as part of the Flood Insurance Study, which are 
adopted by reference and declared a part of this section, and all revisions thereto. Future revisions to the FIS and 
DFIRM panels that do not change flood hazard data within the jurisdictional authority of Camden County are also 
adopted by reference and declared a part of this section.  
 
 
151.3.8.3.C.4.b Certification Requirements 
 

b.  An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31, as amended) or Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 
81-65, as amended) is required after the reference level is completed.  Within ten calendar days of 
establishment of the reference level elevation, or floodproofing, by whatever construction means, 
whichever is applicable, it shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator 
a certification of the elevation of the reference level, or floodproofed elevation, whichever is applicable 
in relation to mean sea level.  Elevation certification shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision 
of a registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by same. Floodproofing certification 
shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified 
by same.  Any work done within the ten-day calendar period and prior to submission of the certification 
shall be at the permit holder's risk. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data 
submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and 
prior to further progressive work being permitted to proceed.  Failure to submit the certification or failure 
to make required corrections shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project.  (Optional at the 
discretion of Building Inspector or Flood Administrator) 

 

151. 3.8.3.C.4.f. Certification Exemptions  

The following structures, if located within A, AO, AH, or AE or AI-30 zones, are exempt from the  

elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified in divisions (1) and (2) below:  

1. Recreational vehicles meeting requirements of Section 3.8.3.D.2, Specific Standards;  

5.B.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

p
d

at
es

T
o

O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_8
-1

-2
2 

 (
33

56
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 -

 A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



2. Temporary structures meeting requirements of Section 3.8.3.D.2, Specific Standards; and  

3. Accessory structures less than 150 600 square feet or less meeting requirements of Section 

3.8.3.D.2.h. Accessory Structures, Specific Standards. 
 
151.3.8.3.D.2.h Accessory Structures. When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) are to be placed within a 

Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:  

1. Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including work, sleeping,  

living, cooking or restroom areas) and shall not be temperature controlled;  

2. Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential;  

3. Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of 

floodwaters;  

4. Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with this subchapter or by bolting the building to a concrete slab 

or by over the top ties. When bolting to a concrete slab, one-half inch bolts six feet on center with a minimum of two per side 

shall be required. If over the top ties are used a minimum of two ties with a force adequate to secure the building is required; and  

5. All service facilities such as electrical equipment shall be installed in accordance with  

Section 3.8.3.D.1.d; and 

6. Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided below regulatory flood protection elevation in 

conformance with Section 3.8.3.D.2.d.13.  

7. An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150 of 600 square feet or less in A, AO, AH, and 

AE Zones that satisfies the criteria outlined above does is not required to meet the elevation and 

floodproofing standards of Article 151.3, Section 3.8.3.C.2.b. an eElevation or floodproofing 

certifications are required for all other accessory structures in accordance with Article 151.3, 

Section 3.8.3.C.2.b.  

8. Accessory structures over 150 square feet and up to 1,000 square feet or less with a value of less than $15,000 

may be permitted below the base flood elevation as defined in Section 10.3, Definitions, provided they 
satisfy the criteria outlined above. 

9. Accessory structures greater than 1,000 square feet shall meet the elevation requirements as defined in Section 
10.3, Definitions, or flood proofing requirements set forth in Section 3.8.3.C.2.c. 

 
 
  

5.B.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

p
d

at
es

T
o

O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_8
-1

-2
2 

 (
33

56
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 -

 A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Part 2: 

Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 Article 151.3.8.3. Special Flood 
Hazard Area Overly and the Camden County Stormwater Drainage Design Manual Specifically Section 9 
Floodplain and Floodway Management as follows: 
 
151.3.8.3 Special Flood Hazard Area Overly 

151.3.8.3.5 Duties and Responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator 
o.  Excavation and filling in the floodplain areas Special Flood Hazard Areas, areas noted as AE in the FIRM 

maps, may be allowed at the approval of the county. Cut and fill for new development in the floodplain will 
only may be acceptable if the net volume available within the floodplain remains the same 
(https://msc.fema.gov/portal/advanceSearch). The volumes will be judged from one-foot contour to the next. 
No credit will be provided for excavation below the normal water elevation of the creek or below the ground 
water table, whichever is higher. The Engineer will provide the areas and volumes at one-foot contour 
intervals for the existing conditions and demonstrate through volume calculations that the proposed condition 
equals or provides more storage volume for the development. The calculation and demonstration shall begin 
at the normal elevation, or invert elevation, and proceed by even one-foot increments to the FIRM reported 
base flood elevation for the immediate area. The cut and fill within the floodplain area must take place within 
the general confines of the development or within 500 feet of the river station shown on the FEMA maps. 

 
q.    As an alternative to Item o of this Section, new developments which lie within a floodplain may fill 

beyond the balance limitations as provided by Item o if they subject their parcel and development to 
the Stormwater Management Plan Review process prescribed by Table 7.1.3 in this Ordinance and a 
Drainage Stormwater Study is performed in accordance with Division 7 of the County’s Stormwater 
Drainage Design Manual. The Drainage Stormwater Study in this instance must show, the post 
development 100-year discharge rate is held to the pre-development discharge rate and that the 
hydraulic grade lines are not increased at any point immediately upstream or downstream of the 
development. This alternative will only be acceptable after a preapplication meeting with the County’s 
Stormwater Engineer, County Planning Director or their designee, and the applicant or their design 
engineer and an appropriately scope of analysis is agreed to. 

 

Division 9 Floodplain and Floodway Management 
 
2.  Excavation and filling in the floodplain areas, areas noted as AE in the FIRM maps, may be only be allowed with 
FEMA approval. Cut and fill for new development in the floodplain will only be acceptable if the net volume available 
with https://msc.fema.gov/portal/advanceSearch in the floodplain remains the same or based on methods discussed 
in Section 6. The volumes will be judged from one-foot contour to the next. No credit will be provided for excavation 
below the normal water elevation of the creek or below the ground water table, whichever is higher. The engineer will 
provide the areas and volumes at one-foot contour intervals for the existing conditions and demonstrate through 
volume calculations that the proposed condition equals or provides more storage volume for the development.  The 
calculation and demonstration shall begin at the normal elevation, or invert elevation, and proceed by even one foot 
increments to the FIRM reported base flood elevation for the immediate area. The cut and fill within the floodplain 
area must take place within the general confines of the development or within 500’ of the river station shown on the 
FEMA maps. 
 

6.  As an alternative to Item 2, new developments which lie within a floodplain may fill beyond the balance 
limitations as provided by Item 2 if they subject their parcel and development to the Stormwater Management 
Plan Review process prescribed by Table 7.1.3 in this Ordinance and a Drainage Stormwater Study is 
performed in accordance with Division 7 of this Manual.  The Drainage Stormwater Study in this instance must 
show, the post development 100-year discharge rate is held to the pre-development discharge rate and that 
the hydraulic grade lines are not increased at any point immediately upstream or downstream of the 
development (within the boundaries of the parcels included in the development site). To use this alternative 
means of compliance, the applicant must hold a preapplication meeting with the County’s Stormwater Engineer 
and County Planning Director and develop an approved scope of analysis. 
  

5.B.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

p
d

at
es

T
o

O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_8
-1

-2
2 

 (
33

56
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 -

 A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Part 3: 
 
Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 Article 2.3.18, 

2.3.20, 6.2.7, 6.5.2 and Chapter 52.015 as follows: 
151.2.18 Minor Subdivision 
B.  Applicability 

1. Subdivisions of land that include up to five lots (including the residual parcel) (see Figure 2.3.18.B: Minor 
Subdivision) shall be reviewed in accordance with the standards in this section. 

2. All lots that are adjacent to an existing public water supply line and/or wastewater system lines prior to 
approval of a minor subdivision shall connect to the public systems as part of the establishment of the minor 
subdivision.  However, connection to the public water systems for one or more lots shall not require the 
subdivision to be reviewed as a preliminary plat. 
 

C.  Minor Subdivision Procedure 

6.  Minor Subdivision Review Standards 
a. A minor subdivision shall be approved if the application complies with the following: 

 
8. All lots (including the parent parcel) bordering an existing public water supply system water line and/or 
wastewater system sewer line shall connect to the public water supply system as part of the minor 
subdivision; 

b. Minor subdivisions of land located within the special flood hazard area shall comply with the standards in 
Section3.8.3 Special Flood Hazard Area Overlay (SFHA), and include the following statement: 
“Use of land within a floodplain or a special flood hazard area is substantially restricted by Camden County.” 

c.  If the minor subdivision is required to provide a connection to a public water supply system and/or 
wastewater system, the plat shall include the following statement: 
“The developer is required to install all wastewater and/or water lines and related improvements.” 

151.2.3.20 Preliminary Plat 

3. If the preliminary plat is required to provide a connection to a public water supply system 
and wastewater system, the plat shall include the following statement: 

“The developer is required to install all wastewater and water lines and related 
improvements.” 

 

151.6.2 Required Infrastructure 

151.6.2.2 Generally  

151.6.2.2.3.  Sanitary Sewage System 
a.  In cases of  When development being is required to be served by a public or central private sewage systems, 

the subdivider or developer shall install all sewer lines in accordance with the standards in this Ordinance, the 
procedures manual, and other State or federal requirements. 

b.  Sanitary sewage lines, including pump stations and treatment facilities shall be dedicated to the County for 
maintenance and operation.  Sewer lines serving individual lots or uses prior to their connection to the central 
collection system shall not be the responsibility of the County. 

 

151.6.5. Conservation Subdivision 

6.5.2 Applicability 

3. Where Prohibited 

a. The conservation subdivision option is not available for use in the NR, VR, or MX districts. 

b. Suburban Residential Zoning District will not have individual septic systems due to the 
decrease in the Dimensional Requirements specifically the Minimum Lot Area, from 1 acre 
to 0.5 acre. 

 

5.B.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

p
d

at
es

T
o

O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_8
-1

-2
2 

 (
33

56
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 -

 A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Chapter 52 Sewer Use 
USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS 

§ 52.015  REQUIREMENT OF SEWER USE. 

 
(A) When the owner of a property, with access to public sanitary sewer, under District jurisdiction, 

including an owner of a non-district sewer system, is informed by the Albemarle Regional Health 
Services (ARHS) that the wastewater system serving the property is deemed non-repairable, 
such wastewater shall be discharged into a public sanitary sewer, subject to the provisions of § 
52.125.  The owner shall install at his expense a suitable building sewer or collecting sewer, as 
applicable, and shall install any other facilities necessary to connect the building sewer or 
collecting sewer to the public sewer at an access point provided by the district.  The owner of real 
property shall, within six months of date of notification, make application and connection to the 
public sanitary sewer in accordance with the provisions of this section and §§ 52.105 through 
52.112 off this chapter. 
 

(B) Whenever a building sewer or collecting sewer connected to the public sanitary sewer becomes 
clogged, broken, out of order or detrimental to the use of the public sewer, the owner having 
charge of any building or premises through which the building sewer or collecting sewer collects 
wastewater shall, upon notification by the Board, reconstruct, alter, clean or repair the building 
sewer or collecting sewer as the condition of such may require within ten days after receiving 

notification. 
 
(C) New construction, either subdivision or single lot, residential or commercial, with access to public 
sanitary sewer system under District jurisdiction, shall be required to connect their sanitary wastewater drain 
to the system and such wastewater shall be discharged into a public sanitary sewer, subject to the 
provisions of § 52.125.  The owner shall install at his expense a suitable building sewer or collecting sewer, 
as applicable, and shall install any other facilities necessary to connect the building sewer or collecting 
sewer to the public sewer at an access point provided by the district.  The owner of real property shall make 
application and connection to the public sanitary sewer in accordance with the provisions of this section and 
§§ 52.105 through 52.112 of this chapter. 
 

(Ord. 2005-01-01, passed 2-21-05) 

(Revised 2022-6-27, passed 2022-08-00) 
 

5.B.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

p
d

at
es

T
o

O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_8
-1

-2
2 

 (
33

56
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 -

 A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1204#JD_52.125
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1118#JD_52.105
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1195#JD_52.112
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1204#JD_52.125
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1118#JD_52.105
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1195#JD_52.112


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   June Monthloy Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Report_June 2022 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  June Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 61



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
_J

u
n

e 
20

22
  (

33
67

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2022-08-01 Appointing Kyle Breslin as Plat 

Review Officer 

 

Attachments: Resolution Plat Review Officer -Kyle Breslin

 (DOCX) 

 

It is the request of Planning Director Amber Curling that Kyle Breslin be appointed Plat Review 

Officer for Camden County, NC as he has received the required certification.   

6.B

Packet Pg. 69



 
 

Resolution No. 2022-08-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

TO APPOINT KYLE BRESLIN AS PLAT REVIEW OFFICER 

FOR CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

WHEREAS, an Act to improve the procedures for recording maps and plats, to revise the law 

governing the disposition of certain birth and death certificates, and to establish a study of land 

title registration procedures was ratified the 8th day of July, 1997 by the North Carolina General 

Assembly; 

 

WHEREAS, G.S. 47-30.2 of this General Statute requires the Board of Commissioners of each 

county to designate by name one or more persons experienced in mapping or land records 

management as a Review Officer to review each map and plat required to be submitted for review 

before the map or plat is presented to the Register of Deeds for recording; 

 

WHEREAS, each person designated a Review Officer shall, if reasonably feasible, be certified as 

a property mapper pursuant to G.S. 147-54.4; 

 

WHEREAS, a resolution designating a Review Officer shall be recorded in the county registry 

and indexed on the grantor index in the name of the Review Officer; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Camden County Board of Commissioners, in 

Camden County North Carolina, hereby appoints Mr. Kyle Breslin as Plat Review Officer this, the 

1st day of August, 2022. 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Ross B. Munro, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 P
la

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 O

ff
ic

er
 -

K
yl

e 
B

re
sl

in
  (

33
65

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
02

2-
08

-0
1 

A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 K
yl

e 
B

re
sl

in
 a

s 
P

la
t 

R
ev

ie
w

 O
ff

ic
er

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proposal to Purchase Real Property 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary_Proposal to Purchase Real 

Property (DOCX) 

Modified Document Williams Farms of North 

Carolina - Purchase and 

Sale Agreement

 (DOC) 

Boring Location Plan (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 71



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   August 1, 2022 

 

Item Title:  Proposal to Purchase Real Property 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

It has come to the attention of County leadership that the property located on RT 343 N that has been 

designated for the new high school is less than desirable to develop due to the subsoils located on the 

property.  After much work and various soil samplings the Manager at Risk, MB Kahn, has determined 

the cost to mitigate the site would drive the cost up significantly upwards of $4M. In addition, the 

location of the school along RT 343 N will create traffic issues for both the traveling public and those 

using the school location. 

 

With that in mind, the County wanted to look for an alternate site for the new high school. The location 

being considered is located across from the County Administration Building on Hwy 158 East. This 

project site is located along the south side of NC Hwy 158 (Shortcut Road) in Camden, North Carolina. 

More specifically, the site is located approximately 0.5-miles east of the NC Hwy 158 and NC SR 34 

intersection and was observed to consist of an open agricultural area. The property consists of 194 acres 

of which 60-70 acres would be designated for the new high school. This property will provide adequate 

space for the new building, parking, sports fields and expansion when needed.  

 

The County has already contracted with Timmons Group to conduct an environmental analysis and soil 

borings on this site to ensure the land is satisfactory for the new high school (see attached). 

 

The Public Hearing was held on June 6, 2022 and a joint meeting was held with the Board of Education 

on July 27, 2022.     

 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y_

P
ro

p
o

sa
l t

o
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
R

ea
l P

ro
p

er
ty

  (
33

62
 :

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l t

o
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
R

ea
l P

ro
p

er
ty

)



 

  Page 1 

 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and entered into 

as of the ______ day of___________, 20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between WILLIAMS 

FARMS OF NORTH CAROLINA, INC., a North Carolina corporation (“Seller”), and THE 

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA, a political subdivision of the State of North 

Carolina (“Buyer”), provides as follows: 

Recitals: 

A. Seller is the owner of a certain parcel of undeveloped land located on the south 

side of U.S. Route 158 in Camden County, North Carolina, containing approximately 195 acres 

(the “Entire Parcel”) as shown on the Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.   

B. Seller has agreed to sell to Buyer, and Buyer has agreed to buy from Seller a 

portion of the Entire Parcel containing approximately seventy (70) acres (the “Property”) and to 

grant Buyer an option to purchase the remainder of the Entire Parcel (the “Option Property”). 

Agreement: 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged and which includes the mutual promises of the parties, the parties 

agree as follows: 

1. Property.  Seller agrees to sell the Property to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to 

purchase the Property from Seller. The Property includes all strips, gores, easements, privileges, 

rights-of-way, riparian and other water rights, rights to lands underlying any adjacent streets or 

roads, and other tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances, if any, pertaining to or accruing to 

the benefit of the Property. 

2. Purchase Price. The purchase price (“Purchase Price”) for the Property is  

Twenty Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) per acre of land (rounded to the nearest 

thousandth of an acre) in the Property as determined by the “Survey” (defined below).  The 

Purchase Price shall be payable as follows: 

(a). $25,000 by the “Deposit,” as defined in Section 4 below, which shall be 

applied to the Purchase Price at the Closing; and 

(b). The balance shall be payable to Seller in immediately available funds at 

the Closing;  and 

3. Closing.  The purchase of the Property will be closed (“Closing”) on or before 

thirty (30) days after the last day of the “Investigation Period” (defined below).  The Closing will 

be held at 10:00 A.M. local time in the offices of Buyer’s attorney, unless otherwise agreed upon 

by the parties.   

4. Earnest Money Deposit.  On the first business day following the Effective Date, 

Buyer shall make an earnest money deposit in the amount of Twenty Five Thousand and 00/100 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 2 

 

Dollars ($25,000.00) (the “Deposit”), to be held in escrow by ___________________ (“Escrow 

Agent”). If Buyer does not timely make the Deposit, then Seller may immediately terminate this 

Agreement by written notice to Buyer. The Deposit shall be subject to the terms set forth below: 

4.1. Escrow Agent shall hold the Deposit in an interest bearing FDIC or FSLIC 

insured account. Interest shall be added to the Deposit and shall be considered to be a part of the 

Deposit. 

4.2. The Escrow Agent shall disburse the Deposit in accordance with the terms 

of this Agreement.  

4.3. If the Deposit has not been disbursed previously, and parties are 

proceeding to Closing, then the Escrow Agent shall deliver the Deposit at Closing to the 

settlement agent, if other than the Escrow Agent, for credit against the Purchase Price. 

5. Investigation Period.  Through 5:00 P.M. local time on the 120th day after the 

Effective Date (the “Investigation Period”), Buyer and Buyer’s representatives shall have access 

to the Entire Parcel for the purpose of conducting its due diligence investigations.    

5.1. During the Investigation Period Buyer and Buyer’s agents or designees 

shall have the right to enter the Entire Parcel for purposes of performing such investigations and 

other inquiries, tests and evaluations as Buyer deems reasonably necessary, including economic, 

legal and title analysis, securing environmental and engineering reports, determining the 

availability of suitable utilities, and performing such other reasonable and customary due 

diligence as the Buyer elects to perform. All such investigations shall be at Buyer’s sole expense. 

5.2. Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date, Seller shall deliver 

to Buyer, if not previously delivered, the following documents and information with respect to 

the Entire Parcel to the extent that they are in existence and are in Seller’s possession or are 

readily available to Seller without any cost or expense to Seller: 

5.2.1. The most recent survey; 

5.2.2. Any soil reports or environmental assessments;  and 

5.2.3. A copy of any policy of title insurance issued in favor of Seller. 

5.3. Seller makes no independent representation or warranty as to such 

documents except that they are true and correct copies of the materials in Seller’s possession. All 

materials delivered to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as confidential by Buyer 

and returned to Seller in the event that Buyer does not acquire the Property; provided, however, 

that Buyer shall have the right to disclose such materials to Buyer’s agents, employees, 

attorneys, consultants, investors and lenders so long as reasonable efforts are made to keep such 

matters confidential.   

5.4. Buyer may enter the Entire Parcel for the purpose of obtaining a phase I 

environmental site assessment of the Entire Parcel and for conducting soil and other geo-

technical tests and evaluations, subject to the limitations set forth below. Buyer shall give Seller 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 3 

 

reasonable notice prior to entering the Entire Parcel, and Seller shall have the right to observe the 

testing being done. Buyer shall fill in all holes and otherwise restore the Entire Parcel after 

conducting such tests. 

5.5. Buyer shall not perform any invasive environmental testing (e.g. a phase II 

environmental site assessment) without the prior written approval of Seller. 

5.6. Buyer shall repair any damage to the Entire Parcel caused by its 

investigations. Buyer agrees to indemnify and to hold Seller harmless from any loss, cost, 

expense or liability incurred or sustained by the claim of any person made by reason of any due 

diligence activities conducted by Buyer or its agents or contractors. This indemnity shall survive 

Closing and any termination of this Agreement. 

5.7. Buyer shall have the absolute right at any time prior to the expiration of 

the Investigation Period (as the same may be extended) to terminate this Agreement by giving 

written notice to Seller, and upon such termination the entire Deposit (together with any interest 

but less any Escrow Agent fees) shall be paid to the Buyer, and the parties shall have no further 

rights, obligations or liabilities with respect to each other under this Agreement (except for 

Buyer’s indemnity obligations that survive termination of this Agreement).  

5.8. Upon Seller’s request, Buyer will provide Seller with copies of all reports 

and other due diligence materials with respect to the Entire Parcel. 

6. Subdivision Plat.  Promptly following the execution and delivery of this 

Agreement, Buyer shall cause a surveyor licensed in the State of North Carolina to prepare a 

subdivision plat (the “Subdivision Plat”) and other documents required to create the Property as a 

separately subdivided parcel of land.  The acreage of the Property, as shown on the Subdivision 

Plat (rounded to the nearest one thousandth of an acre), shall, absent manifest error, be the basis 

for determining the Purchase Price.  Seller shall have the right to approve the configuration and 

dimensions of the Property as shown on the Subdivision Plat, which approval shall not be 

unreasonable delayed, withheld, or conditioned.  Buyer shall cause the Subdivision Plat to be 

approved by any applicable administrative or political process and cause it to be recorded in the 

office of the Camden County Register of Deeds.  Seller agrees to cooperate with Buyer in the 

process to have the Subdivision Plat recorded and shall sign the Subdivision Plat as the 

landowner if required as a condition to the approval or recordation of the Subdivision Plat.   

Seller shall not be obligated to approve or sign any Subdivision Plat that provides for the 

dedication of any land without compensation deemed acceptable to Seller. 

7. Title and Survey.  Seller will convey title to the Property to Seller by Special 

Warranty Deed, the form of which is attached as Exhibit B.  

7.1. On or before twenty days prior to the end of the Investigation Period, 

Buyer shall at its sole cost and expense cause a title examination to be made of the Property and 

shall obtain a commitment for the issuance of title insurance (the “Commitment”) by a title 

insurance company acceptable to Buyer (the “Title Company”).  The Title Company need not be 

the same company as the Escrow Agent, but can be any title insurance company selected by 

Buyer. A copy of the Commitment shall be delivered to Seller. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 4 

 

7.2. On or before twenty days prior to the end of the Investigation Period, 

Buyer shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, a survey of the Property prepared and certified 

by a North Carolina licensed surveyor (“Survey”). At least two prints of the Survey shall be 

delivered to Seller.   

7.3. Buyer shall have until twenty days prior to the end of the Investigation 

Period to examine the Commitment and the Survey.  

7.3.1. If Buyer finds any objectionable matters in the Commitment or on 

the Survey (each an “Objectionable Condition”), then Buyer shall notify Seller in writing of all 

of such Objectionable Conditions on or before the end of the Investigation Period (“Buyer’s 

Notice”). Copies of all documents evidencing each Objectionable Condition will be delivered 

with the Buyer’s Notice. Buyer’s failure to timely give the Buyer’s Notice shall be deemed 

Buyer’s acceptance of the condition of the title to the Property “as is”, including all matters 

shown on the Commitment and Survey. 

7.3.2. Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of Buyer’s Notice, Seller 

shall notify Buyer in writing whether Seller elects to cure any of the Objectionable Conditions 

(“Seller’s Notice”). Seller’s failure to timely give the Seller’s Notice shall be deemed Seller’s 

election not to cure any of the Objectionable Conditions.     

7.3.3. If Seller elects not to cure any one or more of the Objectionable 

Conditions, then Buyer may, prior to the expiration of the Investigation Period, terminate this 

Agreement and receive a refund of the Deposit. If Buyer does not terminate the Agreement, then 

Byer shall be deemed to have waived the Objectionable Conditions that Seller has not elected to 

cure and they shall be Permitted Exceptions.  

7.3.4. The following shall constitute “Permitted Exceptions”: 

7.3.4.1. All exceptions shown the Commitment that are not 

Objectionable Conditions enumerated in a Buyer’s Notice. 

7.3.4.2. All Objectionable Conditions enumerated in a Buyer’s 

Notice and with respect to which Buyer has waived its objection or is deemed to have waived its 

objection. 

7.3.4.3. All matters of record as of the Effective Date and all 

matters of survey that would be disclosed by an accurate survey of the Property and that are not 

objected to by Buyer or that are objected to by Buyer and with respect to which Buyer has 

waived its objection or is deemed to have waived its objection. 

7.3.5. In all events, Seller shall (x) cause to be discharged at Closing the 

lien of all instruments securing financing obtained by Seller and (y) execute an affidavit 

confirming that (a) there are no rights of possession (other than _________________) and (b) no 

mechanics’ liens or materialmen’s liens or claims have been or may be filed against the Property 

or, if Seller cannot provide such confirmation, Seller shall cause the Title Company to insure 

Buyer’s title without any exception for mechanics’ and materialmen’s liens. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 5 

 

7.4. If Seller elects to cure any Objectionable Conditions, then Seller shall cure 

such Objectionable Conditions at or prior to Closing.  If Seller elects to cure, but shall fail to 

cure, any Objectionable Condition at or prior to Closing, then Buyer may either (a) cure such 

condition itself if the Objectionable Condition is a lien or encumbrance of an ascertainable 

amount which can be cured by the payment of money, and deduct from the Purchase Price the 

reasonable costs and expenses incurred by Buyer in curing such Objectionable Condition, (b) 

waive the Objectionable Condition and proceed to Close the transaction contemplated by this 

Agreement with no reduction in the Purchase Price relating to the uncured Objectionable 

Condition (except to the extent of liens or encumbrances of an ascertainable amount), or (c) 

terminate this Agreement in which case the Escrow Agent shall return the Deposit to Buyer. 

7.5. Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, Seller will permit no 

changes to the status of the title to the Property after the Effective Date that would be binding on 

Buyer without the consent of the Buyer. 

 

8. Closing Costs; Settlement Adjustments.  

8.1. Seller shall pay any North Carolina transfer tax with respect to the transfer 

of title to the Property.   

8.2. Buyer shall be responsible for the payment of the title insurance 

premiums, its attorneys’ fees, and the cost of recording the title instruments and the Deed of 

Trust, and the fees of Seller’s attorney to prepare the Note and Deed of Trust. 

8.3. Seller shall be responsible for all delinquent, deferred or “roll back” real 

estate property taxes applicable to the Property, including any interest or penalties. All other 

current year real estate property taxes for the Property shall be prorated as of the date of Closing 

on a calendar year basis. In the event the taxes for the year of Closing are unknown, the tax 

proration will be based upon such taxes for the prior year and, at the request of either party, the 

taxes shall be re-prorated and adjusted when the tax bill for the year of Closing is received and 

the actual amount of taxes is known.  

8.4. Seller shall be responsible for all governmental assessments confirmed as 

of the Closing, and Buyer shall be responsible for any such assessments or dues confirmed 

thereafter.   

9. Seller’s Representations and Warranties.  Seller represents and warrants to Buyer 

that as of the Effective Date: 

9.1. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Seller, 

constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Seller, and is enforceable against the Seller in 

accordance with its terms. 

9.2. To the best of Seller’s knowledge, there are no pending, threatened or 

contemplated condemnation actions involving all or any portion of the Entire Parcel, and Seller 

has received no notice of any such action. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 6 

 

9.3. Seller has received no notice of and to the best of Seller’s knowledge there 

is no pending litigation involving Seller or the Property which would in any way (i) be binding 

upon the Buyer and materially and adversely limit the Buyer’s full use and enjoyment of the 

Entire Parcel, or (ii) limit or restrict Seller’s right or ability to enter into this Agreement and 

consummate the transactions contemplated under this Agreement. 

9.4. Seller is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 

North Carolina, with full power and authority to enter into the transactions set forth in this 

Agreement. Upon request by Buyer, Seller shall supply to Buyer a true and complete copy of 

resolutions or organizational documents as shall be reasonably necessary to provide evidence 

that Seller is properly organized and that Seller’s constituent officers or partners are authorized 

to execute all the documents contemplated by this Agreement. 

9.5. To the best of Seller's knowledge, without independent investigation or 

inquiry, and except to the extent otherwise disclosed in any environmental report or study 

obtained by Buyer prior to Closing or in any environmental report or study delivered by Seller to 

Buyer prior to Closing: (a) Seller has not received written notice from any governmental 

authority relating to an existing violation of the Entire Parcel under any applicable environmental 

law; and (b) Seller has not caused, during the period of Seller's ownership of the Entire Parcel, 

any discharge of hazardous materials on or from the Entire Parcel in violation of any applicable 

environmental law. 

9.5.1. The term “applicable environmental law” means any law, statute, 

code, rule, or regulation of the United States, the State of North Carolina, and all local 

governmental or regulatory authorities exercising jurisdiction over Seller or the Entire Parcel, 

pertaining to prohibition or regulation of hazardous or toxic wastes or materials, including, but 

not limited to, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 

(CERCLA) and the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) (42 U.S.C. 

Section 9601, et seq.), as amended from time to time. 

9.5.2. Buyer acknowledges that current or future federal, state and local 

laws and regulations may require the cleanup of any matters subsequently discovered on the 

Entire Parcel, which constitute hazardous, toxic or regulated materials, wastes or substances 

under applicable environmental laws at the expense of the persons who, in the past, present or 

future may have had or continue to have an interest in the Entire Parcel including, without 

limited to, current, past and future owners and users/operators including tenants of the Entire 

Parcel.  The cost and expense of such cleanup may be substantial.  Buyer acknowledges and 

agrees that Buyer shall look solely to the experts and professionals selected or approved by 

Buyer to advise Buyer with respect to the condition of the Entire Parcel and will not hold Seller 

or any brokers responsible for any environmental conditions or problems relating to the Entire 

Parcel or for any remediation or other cleanup activities in connection therewith, and hereby 

releases Seller from any such liability. 

9.6. Seller is not a “foreign person” within the meaning of Section 1445 of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1954 as amended.  

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 7 

 

10. Buyer’s Representations and Warranties.  Buyer represents and warrants to 

Seller that as of the Effective Date: 

10.1. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Buyer, 

constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Buyer, and is enforceable against the Buyer in 

accordance with its terms. 

10.2. Buyer is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the place of 

its formation with full power and authority to enter into the transactions set forth in this 

Agreement. Buyer shall provide at Closing an opinion of counsel in form and substance 

satisfactory to Seller that Buyer has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this 

Agreement and the purchase of the Property and that the person who has executed and delivered 

on behalf of Buyer, the Note, Deed of Trust and all other documents with respect to the 

transaction contemplated by this Agreement is duly authorized to do so.   

11. Conditions to Closing.   

11.1. The obligations of the Buyer to close on its acquisition of the Property are 

subject to the satisfaction at or prior to Closing of the following conditions and upon each of the 

factual statements set forth below being true:  

11.1.1. The Seller shall have performed and complied with all terms and 

conditions required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Seller prior to or 

at Closing. 

11.1.2. The representations and warranties of Seller contained in this 

Agreement shall be true and correct on the date of Closing. 

11.1.3. There shall be no encumbrances or other defects in the title to the 

Property other than the Permitted Exceptions.  

11.1.4. The Subdivision Plat shall have been recorded. 

11.2. The obligations of the Seller hereunder are subject to the satisfaction at or 

prior to Closing of the following conditions and upon each of the factual statements set forth 

below being true:  

11.2.1. The Buyer shall have performed and complied with all terms and 

conditions required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Buyer prior to or 

at Closing. 

11.2.2. The representations and warranties of Buyer contained in this 

Agreement shall be true and correct on the date of Closing.  

11.2.3.  The Subdivision Plat shall have been recorded. 

 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 8 

 

12. Seller’s Obligations at Closing.  Seller shall deliver to Buyer the following at 

Closing: 

12.1. An executed counterpart of a settlement statement showing the Purchase 

Price and all credits, allocations, prorations and other financial adjustments between the parties 

as set forth in this Agreement (“Settlement Statement”).  

12.2. The executed and acknowledged Special Warranty Deed to the Property, 

with a legal description of the Property based on the Survey or recorded Plat. 

12.3. A duly executed lien affidavit sufficient to permit the Title Company to 

issue its title policy without exception for unpaid laborers’ and materialmen’s liens and without 

exception for rights of possession of any third party other than ___________________. 

12.4. A certificate given under penalty of perjury and on a form approved under 

regulations promulgated under Section 1445 of Internal Revenue Code of 1954 as amended, that 

Seller is not a foreign person. 

12.5. Such other documents and instruments which may be necessary for the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as may be reasonably 

requested by Buyer or Buyer’s counsel.  

13. Buyer’s Obligations at Closing.  Buyer shall deliver the following to the Seller at 

Closing: 

13.1. An executed counterpart of the Settlement Statement. 

13.2. The Purchase Price, subject to credits, allocations, prorations and 

adjustments as set forth in this Agreement, and minus the original principal amount of the Note 

to be paid by wire transfer or other immediately available funds in sufficient time to permit 

Seller to discharge any deeds of trust or other monetary liens against the Property on a “same 

day” basis.  

13.3. Such other documents and instruments which may be necessary for the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as may be reasonably 

requested by Seller or Seller’s counsel. 

14. Risk of Loss.  Risk of loss prior to Closing shall be on Seller and Seller shall 

provide notice to Buyer promptly after the occurrence of any loss of or damage to the Property.   

15. Eminent Domain.  If, prior to Closing, more than five percent (5%) of the 

Property is taken by eminent domain, or if such condemnation proceedings are commenced, 

Buyer shall have the option, by written notice to Seller, to terminate this Agreement. If Buyer 

does not elect to terminate this Agreement then (i) this Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect, (ii) Seller shall assign, transfer and set over to Buyer at the Closing all of Seller’s right, 

title and interest in and to the eminent domain proceedings and any awards that may be made for 

such taking (including any funds which Seller may have received for such condemnation prior to 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 9 

 

Closing), and (iii) after Closing, Buyer shall be solely responsible, at its cost, for litigating any 

eminent domain proceedings that have not been completed prior to Closing. 

16. Brokerage Commissions. Seller and Buyer represent and warrant each to the 

other that they have not dealt with any broker or realtor in connection with this transaction.  Each 

party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other from and against any and all claims, demands 

or the cost and expense thereof (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of any 

brokerage commission, fee or other compensation due or alleged to be due to any person in 

connection with the transaction contemplated by this Agreement based upon any agreement 

alleged to have been made or other action alleged to have been taken by the indemnifying party. 

This indemnity obligation shall survive Closing and any termination of this Agreement. 

17. Default and Remedies. 

17.1. If Seller fails to perform any of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement or is otherwise in default under this Agreement, then Buyer, at Buyer’s sole option 

and as its sole remedies, may elect to: 

17.1.1. Waive the default or failure and close “as is”; or 

17.1.2. Terminate this Agreement by written notice to Seller given on or 

before the date of Closing, in which event Buyer shall be entitled to recover the Deposit, in 

which case both parties shall be released from all further obligations under this Agreement 

except for those obligations that specifically survive termination of this Agreement; or 

17.1.3. Seek specific performance of Seller’s obligations under this 

Agreement provided that any suit for specific performance must be filed within ninety (90) days 

after the date on which Seller’s default is alleged to have occurred or it shall be forever barred. 

17.2. If Buyer fails to perform any of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement or is otherwise in default under this Agreement, then Seller, as its sole remedy, shall 

receive the Deposit as agreed and liquidated damages for the breach, whereupon the parties shall 

be relieved of all further obligations under this Agreement except for Buyer’s indemnity 

obligations which survive termination of this Agreement.  

17.3. If either party is in breach of its representations or warranties, and such 

breach is not disclosed by the breaching party to the other party in writing prior to Closing, then 

the other party shall have whatever rights or remedies are available against the breaching party at 

law or equity.  Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary neither party may bring a claim of 

breach of representation or warranty by the other unless the party claiming the breach notifies the 

other party of its claims within one (1) year after the Closing. 

17.4. In no event shall either party be liable to the other party for consequential 

or punitive damages. 

17.5. In the event either party brings any legal action to enforce its rights against 

the other party, then the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all legal 

costs (including reasonable attorneys fees at all tribunal levels). 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 10 

 

18. Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written 

consent of the other; provided that, Buyer may assign its right to take title under this Agreement 

to another entity owned or controlled by Buyer or the principal owners of Buyer, but Buyer shall 

not be relieved of its obligations under this Agreement.  

19. Miscellaneous. 

19.1. Property Transferred “As Is and Where Is”.  Subject to the Seller’s 

representations and warranties specifically set forth in this Agreement and in the special 

warranty deed to be delivered at Closing: (i) it is understood and agreed that Seller has not made 

and is not making and specifically disclaims any warranties, representations or guarantees of any 

kind or character, express or implied, oral or written, past, present or future, with respect to the 

Property and its suitability for any particular purpose or use; (ii) Buyer acknowledges that it is 

generally familiar with the Property and is a sophisticated Buyer of real estate, and that it is 

relying upon its own expertise and that of its consultants in purchasing the Property and that it 

will conduct such inspections and investigations as it deems necessary including, but not limited 

to, the physical and environmental conditions thereof and shall rely upon the same; and (iii) 

Seller shall sell and convey to Buyer, and Buyer shall accept the Property, “AS IS, WHERE IS, 

WITH ALL FAULTS”.  The terms and conditions of this provision shall expressly survive the 

Closing and not merge with the provisions of any closing documents, shall run with the land and 

shall be binding on any successors, assigns or transferees of Buyer. Neither Seller nor Buyer is 

liable or bound in any manner by any oral or written statements, representations or information 

pertaining to the Property furnished by any broker, agent, employee, servant or other person, 

unless the same are expressly set forth herein. 

19.2. Notices.  All notices under this Agreement shall be given in writing and 

shall be: (a) hand delivered against a written receipt of delivery, (b) delivered to a nationally 

recognized overnight courier service for next business day delivery with delivery changes paid 

by, or billed to, the Sender, or (c) by email, provided, however, that if such notice is given by 

email, an original counterpart of such communication shall concurrently be sent in either the 

manner specified in the clause (b) above.  Each such notice, demand or request, shall be deemed 

to have been given upon the earlier of (i) actual receipt or refusal by the addressee or (ii) one day 

after the deposit thereof with a courier if sent pursuant to clause (b) above. Notices shall be 

directed as follows: 

TO BUYER:  

 

THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 

  

  

 

with a copy to:  

 

   

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 11 

 

   

   

 

TO SELLER:  

Williams Farms of North Carolina, Inc. 

Attn:   Frank T. Williams, President 

  

  

Email:  

 

with copies to:  

Vincent J. Mastracco Jr., Esq. 

Kaufman & Canoles, PC 

150 West Main Street, Suite 1900 

Norfolk, Virginia 23510 

Email:  vjmastracco@kaufcan.com 

 

Notices may be given on behalf of any party by its legal counsel.  Either party may, from 

time to time, by notice as herein provided, designate a different address to which notice to it shall 

be sent. 

19.3. Knowledge. The phrases “to the best of Seller’s knowledge,” “to Seller’s 

knowledge,” “to Seller’s actual knowledge,” “Seller has no knowledge of,” and similar phrases 

shall mean the actual, and not constructive, current knowledge of Frank T. Williams; and shall 

not impose any requirement upon such individual to undertake any independent investigation or 

inquiry.  

19.4. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

19.5. Entire Agreement.  This instrument and any exhibits and addenda hereto 

contain the entire understanding and agreement by and between the parties and all prior or 

contemporaneous oral or written agreements or instruments are merged herein and no 

amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless the same is in writing and signed by the 

parties hereto. There are no representations, warranties or undertakings given or made by either 

party hereto except as set forth herein or in any instrument delivered pursuant hereto. 

19.6. Survival. The indemnity obligations of the parties set forth in this 

Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement and Closing. The representations and 

warranties of the parties shall survive for a period of one (1) year after Closing. All obligations 

of the parties which are required to be performed by a party after Closing under the terms of this 

Agreement, including all obligations regarding the Development Obligations, shall survive 

closing. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 12 

 

19.7. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to 

the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and assigns. 

19.8. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings throughout this 

Agreement are for convenience and reference only and the words contained therein shall in no 

way be held to define or add to the interpretation, construction or meaning of any provision of 

this Agreement. 

19.9. Counterpart Originals.  This Agreement may be executed in separate 

counterparts with multiple originals.  Any party may execute this Agreement electronically using an 

electronic signature service.  This Agreement may be delivered by facsimile, email, or any other form of 

electronic transmission.  Copies of this Agreement are acceptable as originals for all purposes.  

19.10. Time. Time periods under this Agreement shall be computed by excluding 

the starting day and including the ending day of the period. The term “business day” shall mean 

any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or a day in which the North Carolina courts or federal 

banks are closed. When any date for taking action does not fall on a business day, then the time 

for taking such action will be extended to the next business day. Time is of the essence with 

respect to the rights and obligations created under this Agreement. 

20. Option 

20.1. If Buyer closes on the acquisition of the Property then Buyer shall have 

the exclusive option (the “Option”) to purchase the Option Property.  The term during which the 

Option may be exercised by Buyer shall be three (3) years, beginning on the date of the Closing 

on Buyer’s purchase of the Property and ending on the date which is the third anniversary of the 

Closing on Buyer’s purchase of the Property(the “Option Period”).  The Option shall terminate at 

the end of the Option Period and Buyer shall have no further rights to purchase any portion of the 

Option Property except for any Option Parcel with respect to which Buyer has given an Option 

Notice prior to the end of the Option Period. 

20.2. Buyer may exercise the Option with respect to any contiguous portion of 

the Option Property containing not less than ten (10) acres by giving Seller written notice of its 

exercise of the Option (an “Option Notice”) and identifying the portion of the Option Property to 

be purchased (the “Option Parcel”) prior to the end of the Option Period.  Each Option Parcel 

must have a length that extends from the frontage on Short Cut Road to the rear boundary of the 

Entire Parcel and be of generally uniform width.  

20.3. The purchase price of each Option Parcel shall be in the amount of 

$25,000 per acre for any Option Parcel the Option Notice for which is given prior to the first 

anniversary of the Closing on the Property, $26,500 per acre for any Option Parcel the Option 

Notice for which is given prior to the second anniversary of the Closing on the Property, and 

$28,090 per acre for any Option Parcel the Option Notice for which is given on or after the 

second anniversary of the Closing on the Property.  

20.4. If Buyer timely exercises the Option with respect to any Option Parcel, 

then a contract for the sale and purchase of such Option Parcel shall exist between Seller and 

Buyer on the same terms and conditions  as the sale and purchase of the Property except that (a) 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 13 

 

there shall be no additional Inspection Period with respect to any Option Parcel (Buyer shall be 

satisfied with all aspects of each Option Parcel prior to its giving an Option Notice), (b) Buyer 

shall give Seller notice of any Objectionable Condition as to matters of title or survey at the time 

of giving the Option Notice, (c) the Closing shall occur within fifteen (15) days after the 

recordation of a subdivision plat creating the Option Parcel as a separate parcel, and (d) Buyer 

shall make an earnest money deposit in the amount of $25,000 with respect to each Option 

Parcel within three (3) business days after it delivers the Option Notice with respect to such 

Option Parcel.  Buyer shall have the obligation to cause to be prepared and recorded a 

subdivision plat for each Option Parcel and Seller shall have the approval right as set forth in 

Section 5 above.  In particular Seller’s right to approve the configuration and dimensions of any 

Option Parcel shall include the access to each portion of the Entire Parcel that Buyer has not 

purchased.  

[Signature Page Follows] 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 14 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed and 

sealed as of the Effective Date. 

 

SELLER: 

 

WILLIAMS FARMS OF NORTH CAROLINA, INC. 

 

By:      

Frank T. Williams, President 

 

 

BUYER: 

 

THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

By:      

Name:      

Its:       

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 15 

 

Exhibit A 

Drawing Showing Boundaries of the Property 

 

 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 16 

 

Exhibit B 

Special Warranty Deed Form 

 

 

 

 

Excise Tax:     Recording Time, Book and Page:    

Tax Lot No.:_____________________ Parcel Identifier No.        

Verified by ______________________ County on the ____ day of __________, 20   

by               

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Mail after recording to:   

 

This instrument was prepared by:   

 

Brief description for the Index:    

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NORTH CAROLINA SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

THIS DEED made this ______ day of _________________, 20__, by and between  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 GRANTOR             GRANTEE 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the receipt of 

which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and convey 

unto the Grantee in fee simple, all of that certain lot or parcel of land situated in 

______________ County, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows: 

 

See Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 

The property hereinabove described was part of a larger tract acquired by Grantor by instrument 

recorded in Book ________, Page _______, ____________ County Registry. 

 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

  Page 17 

20095584.v7 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple. 

 

And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor has done nothing to impair such title 

as Grantor received, and Grantor will warrant and defend the title against the lawful claims of all 

persons claiming by, under or through Grantor, except for the exceptions hereinafter stated. 

 

Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions: 

 

This property is conveyed subject to covenants, restrictions, easements and other 

matters of record affecting said property and to 20___ ad valorem taxes and taxes 

for subsequent years. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has executed this instrument as of the day and year first 

above written. 

 

[INSERT NAME] 

 

By:      

Name:      

Its:       

 

STATE OF ________________ : 

 

COUNTY OF    _ : 

  

I certify that the following person personally appeared before me this day, acknowledging to me 

that to me that he voluntarily signed the foregoing document for the purpose stated therein and in 

the capacity indicated:      . 

 

Date:     

  

 Notary Public:      

[Affix Notary Seal] Printed Name:      

                                                             My Commission Expires:     

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
d

if
ie

d
 D

o
cu

m
en

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

F
ar

m
s 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
- 

P
u

rc
h

as
e 

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



6.C.c

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
ri

n
g

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
  (

33
62

 :
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Sarah Hill, 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority 

 

Attachments: Tami Richards_TDA (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Tami Richards be appointed to the Tourism Development 

Authority. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 91



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

am
i R

ic
h

ar
d

s_
T

D
A

  (
33

64
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_070522 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 93



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting  

July 5, 2022; 7:00 PM 

New Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on July 5, 2022 in the boardroom of 

the New Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ross Munro at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice-Chair Tiffney White, 

Commissioners Tom White, Clayton Riggs and Randy Krainiak.   Administration Staff Present: County Attorney 

John Morrison and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis. 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Tommy Berry gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

The agenda was amended to add the following: 

• Sarah Hill of the Dismal Swamp Welcome Center added to Presentations as Item 4.C. 

• Vehicle Tax Refund added to the Consent Agenda as Item 8.M. 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Deborah Penwell of South Mills shared the following remarks: 

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

 

 

Brenda Elmore of Camden addressed the board in support of the new high school, including the ways in which a 

school building facility affects student learning with emphases on overcrowding and temporary trailers being used as 

classrooms.  Ms. Elmore spoke in favor of using the current site on 343 as the site for the new high school.   

 

Bill Stafford of South Mills addressed the board in regard to a proposed boat ramp in South Mills on property that 

currently belongs to the South Mills Water Association.  Mr. Stafford also expressed concern that the South Camden 

Water and Sewer District will not sell additional water to South Mills Water Association but will sell water to the 

Association for use by developers and that the county will go to great lengths to send sewage to South Mills, but not 

water.  Mr. Stafford requested that Vice-Chair Tiffney White and Chairman Ross Munro conduct a public forum in 

South Mills for the purpose of open dialogue with the citizens.   

 

Representative Howard Hunter, 5th District House Member, introduced himself as he now represents Camden 

County in addition to Hertford, Gates, and Pasquotank Counties.   

 

ITEM 4.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Chairman Ross Munro introduced the new Camden County Manager, Mrs. Erin Burke.  Mrs. Burke will 

begin her tenure on July 11, 2022.   

 

Motion to appoint Mrs. Erin Burke as the County Manager for Camden County, NC with an annual base 

salary of $115,000. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

B. Camden County Update – North Carolina Department of Transportation 

 

Mr. Win Bridgers and Division One staff from the North Carolina Department of Transportation gave an update on 

current and proposed NCDOT projects within Camden County.   

 

C. Sarah Hill, Director of the Dismal Swamp Welcome Center recognized Tara Ferguson for completing her 

first year of STS Marketing College.   

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors       

 

The Chairman recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

New Business 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

 
 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

 

 
Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to adjourn the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

The Chairman adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS          

 

A. Schedule of Fees Amendment – Chuck Jones 

 

Motion to open the Public Hearing for amendments to the Schedule of Fees. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

The two amendments to the Schedule of Fees were presented as follows: 

• Reduce the sewer tap fee to a flat rate of $500 if the connection is done in a development in the course of 

installing piping for a new subdivision.  The fees will remain the same if the county installs the connection.  

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

The developer of a subdivision is required to install piping to handle the wastewater generated in the 

development.  The proposal is to reduce the tap fee to a connection fee only to help offset the installer’s 

cost of installation.  Since the county is not providing any labor or materials there would be minimum 

impact.  The county will benefit in the long run by the acquisition new customers and the developer will be 

incentivized to tie in to the county system.  The capacity fee will remain the same.  Staff recommends 

approval. 

• Increase the base water rate by $5 from $25 to $30 per month.  Staff recommends that this amendment be 

considered in the FY 2023-2024 Budget as part of an overall water usage rate increase.   

 

Public Comments 

 

Bill Stafford of South Mills spoke in opposition to the proposed sewer tap fee reduction.  Mr. Stafford explained 

reducing the tap fee will cost the county revenue dollars and developers should be treated just like any other 

business.   

 

Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to add the Schedule of Fees amendments to the agenda, leaving out the $5 increase for this year and 

to approve.   

RESULT: PASSED [4-1] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak  

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak 

NOES: Tiffney White 

 

B. Commerce Park Property Sale  

 

County Attorney John Morrison stated that in order to comply with certain statutory requirements in regard to 

Economic Development and to clarify some language in the agreement with the prospective purchaser, it is his 

request that the Board authorize him to work with the purchaser to have an acceptable agreement ready for the 

Board’s consideration at the next meeting.   

 

Motion to authorize the County Attorney to work with the potential purchaser on the agreement and to place 

this on the agenda for the next meeting.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Mr. Morrison took the opportunity at this point in the meeting to explain to the public that the Board conducts its 

meetings as outlined in the UNC School of Government publication, Suggested Rules of Procedure for the Board of 

County Commissioners, which is an accepted modified version of Robert’s Rules of Order, revised for small boards.  

He specifically noted that these rules do not require a ‘second’ for small boards and the Chairman is permitted to 

make motions.   

 

ITEM 6.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

B. Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications Amendment – John Morrison 

 

It is requested that the Central Communications Interlocal Agreement entered into on June 9, 2017 between City of 

Elizabeth City, Pasquotank County and Camden County be extended for an additional year, ending June 30, 2023.  

Except for the extension of an additional year, all other terms and conditions of the June 9, 2017 Interlocal 

Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications amendment as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

C. Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services Amendment – John Morrison 

 

It is requested that the Emergency Management Coordination Services Interlocal Agreement entered into on June 9, 

2017 between City of Elizabeth City, Pasquotank County and Camden County be extended for an additional year, 

ending June 30, 2023.  Except for the extension of an additional year, all other terms and conditions of the June 9, 

2017 Interlocal Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

     
 

 
 

Motion to approve the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services amendment 

as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

ITEM 7.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Planning Board – Appointment of Dr. Roger Lambertson 

B. Department of Social Services Board – Reappointment of Monique Chamblee 

C. Tourism Development Authority – Reappointment of Dismal Swamp Park Superintendent Adam Carver 

 

Motion to approve the board appointments as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

D. NCACC Conference & Legislative Goals Conference 

 

Motion to appoint Tiffney White as the delegate to the NCACC Annual Conference. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to appoint Clayton Riggs as the alternate delegate to the NCACC Annual Conference. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to appoint Ross Munro as the delegate to the Legislative Goals Conference. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to appoint Tiffney White as the alternate delegate to the Legislative Goals Conference. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

ITEM 8.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – June 6, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

B. School Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

    
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

   
 

    
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

   
 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

C. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

E. Vehicle Tax Refunds Over $100 – March 2022 

 

 
 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 – May 2022 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 
 

H. Surplus Property Request 

 

Department Item Disposal Method Suggested Value Reason for Surplus 

Library 3 Desk Chairs Disposal $0 Broken 

     

 

I. Summer Camp Assistant Contract 

 

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

 

   
 

J. Annual Senior Nutrition Contract – Incorporated herein by reference; on file in the Finance Office. 

 

K. Set Public Hearing for August 1, 2022 – Ordinance Text Amendment 

 

L. Set Public Hearing for August 1, 2022 – Rezoning Request 

 

M. Additional Vehicle Tax Refund Over $100 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

  

ITEM 9.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

Chairman Ross Munro shared the following report from County Manager Ken Bowman in his absence: 

• The Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for the new library was very successful and well attended.  If you haven’t 

visited, please do so in the near future. 

• The new Welcome to Camden County signs are being installed this week.  The locations are: Highway 17 

North and South; Highway 158 East and West corridor.  A big thank you to Ms. Sarah Hill, county staff 

and NCDOT for seeing this project through to completion. 

• Congratulations to Mrs. Erin Burke on her appointment as the new County Manager.  We wish her all the 

best in this new chapter of Camden County. 

• Next Board of Commissioners meeting is August 1, 2022 at 7:00 PM. 

 

ITEM 10. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

None. 

 

ITEM 11.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

 

ITEM 12.  OTHER MATTERS           

None. 

 

ITEM 13.  ADJOURN           

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

  

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Munro adjourned the meeting at 8:09 PM. 

        

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Ross B. Munro, Chairman     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners   Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
05

22
  (

33
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 5

, 2
02

2)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: 22-23 BA 001 Dare Program (DOC) 

22-23 BA 002 Sheriff's Fund Raisers (DOC) 

22-23 BA 003 South MIlls Fire Grant from State of NC

 (DOC) 

22-23 BA 004  JCPC & Extension Programming

 (DOC) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 113



                                                       2022-23-BA001 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10360510-434706 Dare Program Donations   $32,091.41 

 

Expenses  

105100-565205 Dare Program                                          $32,091.41 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds from the Dare Program revenues to 

the expenses for monies received from the Camden County ABC Store.  

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of August, 2022. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
01

 D
ar

e 
P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
33

53
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2022-23-BA002 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10385510-434844 Sheriff’s Fund Raisers   $6,866.74 

10385510-402001 Sheriff’s Private Donations    1,200.00 

 

Expenses  

105100-551400 Sheriff’s Fund Raisers                             $6,866.74 

105100-557001 Sheriff’s Private Donations                       1,200.00 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds from the Sheriff’s Fund Raisers & 

private donations to the expenses for monies received from the Camden County ABC Store 

and private donations.  

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of August, 2022. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
02

 S
h

er
if

f's
 F

u
n

d
 R

ai
se

rs
  (

33
53

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2022-23-BA003 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

41360530-434815 Grant Revenues    $10,000 

 

Expenses  

415300-574108 Grant Equipment                                     $10,000 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds from the Grant Revenues received 

for South Mills Fire Department from the State of NC to the expense line.  

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of August, 2022. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
03

 S
o

u
th

 M
Ill

s 
F

ir
e 

G
ra

n
t 

fr
o

m
 S

ta
te

 o
f 

N
C

  (
33

53
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2022-23-BA004 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10340605-432700 Fees Collected     $5,500 

 

Expenses  

106200-519500 Program Materials                                   $2,000 

106050-544002 Extension Programming                            3,500 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds from the Fees Collected to the 

corresponding expense line.  

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of August, 2022. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
04

  J
C

P
C

 &
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
  (

33
53

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 118



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
55

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: JUNE, 22  VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 June, 2022 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.D

Packet Pg. 160



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

U
N

E
, 2

2 
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0 
 (

33
51

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV Monthly Report September, 22 Renewals (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report September, 22 Renewals Due 10/15/22  

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 162



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
, 2

2 
R

en
ew

al
s 

 (
33

52
 :

 D
M

V
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 164



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

33
54

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property 

 

Attachments: Surplus - Sheriff (PDF) 

Surplus - Library (PDF) 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 166



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

- 
S

h
er

if
f 

 (
33

68
 :

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
P

ro
p

er
ty

)



8.G.b

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

- 
L

ib
ra

ry
  (

33
68

 :
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
)



8.G.b

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

- 
L

ib
ra

ry
  (

33
68

 :
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant for 

Older Adults 

 

Attachments: Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care 

Block Grant (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Annual HCCB Grant administered through Albemarle Commission, benefiting older adults in 

Camden; provides transportation, home health services and nutrition programs. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

8.H

Packet Pg. 170



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

A
n

n
u

al



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

33
59

 :
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 185



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

47
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

47
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   August 01, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 

 

Attachments: 22-06 (DOCX) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 188



Camden County Public Library 

June 2022 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 860 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,176 

Computer/ Wireless Use 109/34 

Questions Answered 330 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 4/99 

Adult Programs/Attendance 1/8 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Study Room Usage/Attendance 17/46 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 4/59 

Days/Hours Open 12/92 

# Items in Collection 19,894 

Library Card Holders 3,022 

 

Comparison by Year 

2020-2022 

  
           

 

** The Library was closed 6/1-6/11 while moving to our new location and all services were suspended 

except for Summer Reading events. 

 

0

1166

860

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

2020 JUN 2021 JUN 2022 JUN

Attendance

1,037

3,357
3,176

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

2020 JUN 2021 JUN 2022 JUN

Circulation

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
06

  (
33

63
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Closed Session - Consultation with County Attorney (Attorney-Client Privilege)
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Boyce Porter, Geneva Baptist Church

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Public Comments
	4. Presentations
	A. 3361 : Vidant Health - Dymond Scott
	Printout: 3361 : Vidant Health - Dymond Scott
	a. Vidant Health CHW Services

	B. 3358 : Trillium Annual Report - Bland Baker
	Printout: 3358 : Trillium Annual Report - Bland Baker
	a. 2021 Annual Report Camden County (002)


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearings
	A. 3357 : Zoning Map Amendment - Amber Curling
	Printout: 3357 : Zoning Map Amendment - Amber Curling
	a. 1_AgendaSummary_SawyerRezoningPH
	b. 2-SawyerRezoningStaffReportPH
	c. 3_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	d. 4_Deed9AcresSection
	e. 5_Deed872Hwy343
	f. 6_SawyerRezoningNeighborhoodSummary
	g. 7_ZoningComparison

	B. 3356 : Ordinance Text Amendments - Amber Curling
	Printout: 3356 : Ordinance Text Amendments - Amber Curling
	a. 20220801_AgendaSummary_TextAmendments
	b. UpdatesToOrdinanceForTextAmendments_8-1-22


	6. New Business
	A. 3367 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	Printout: 3367 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	a. Tax Report_June 2022

	B. 3365 : Resolution 2022-08-01 Appointing Kyle Breslin as Plat Review Officer
	Printout: 3365 : Resolution 2022-08-01 Appointing Kyle Breslin as Plat Review Officer
	a. Resolution Plat Review Officer -Kyle Breslin

	C. 3362 : Proposal to Purchase Real Property
	Printout: 3362 : Proposal to Purchase Real Property
	a. Agenda Summary_Proposal to Purchase Real Property
	b. Modified Document Williams Farms of North Carolina - Purchase and Sale Agreement
	c. Boring Location Plan


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 3364 : Tourism Development Authority
	Printout: 3364 : Tourism Development Authority
	a. Tami Richards_TDA


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 3360 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022
	Printout: 3360 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022
	a. bocminutes_070522

	B. 3353 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 3353 : Budget Amendments
	a. 22-23 BA 001 Dare Program
	b. 22-23 BA 002 Sheriff's Fund Raisers
	c. 22-23 BA 003 South MIlls Fire Grant from State of NC
	d. 22-23 BA 004  JCPC & Extension Programming

	C. 3355 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 3355 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	D. 3351 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 3351 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. JUNE, 22  VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100

	E. 3352 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 3352 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV Monthly Report September, 22 Renewals

	F. 3354 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 3354 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	G. 3368 : Surplus Property
	Printout: 3368 : Surplus Property
	a. Surplus - Sheriff
	b. Surplus - Library

	H. 3359 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults Annual Agreement
	Printout: 3359 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults Annual Agreement
	a. Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 3347 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 3347 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 3363 : Library Report
	Printout: 3363 : Library Report
	a. 22-06


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 3361 : Vidant Health - Dymond Scott
	4.A.a · Vidant Health CHW Services

	4.B · 3358 : Trillium Annual Report - Bland Baker
	4.B.a · 2021 Annual Report Camden County (002)

	5.A · 3357 : Zoning Map Amendment - Amber Curling
	5.A.a · 1_AgendaSummary_SawyerRezoningPH
	5.A.b · 2-SawyerRezoningStaffReportPH
	5.A.c · 3_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	5.A.d · 4_Deed9AcresSection
	5.A.e · 5_Deed872Hwy343
	5.A.f · 6_SawyerRezoningNeighborhoodSummary
	5.A.g · 7_ZoningComparison

	5.B · 3356 : Ordinance Text Amendments - Amber Curling
	5.B.a · 20220801_AgendaSummary_TextAmendments
	5.B.b · UpdatesToOrdinanceForTextAmendments_8-1-22

	6.A · 3367 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	6.A.a · Tax Report_June 2022

	6.B · 3365 : Resolution 2022-08-01 Appointing Kyle Breslin as Plat Review Officer
	6.B.a · Resolution Plat Review Officer -Kyle Breslin

	6.C · 3362 : Proposal to Purchase Real Property
	6.C.a · Agenda Summary_Proposal to Purchase Real Property
	6.C.b · Modified Document Williams Farms of North Carolina - Purchase and Sale Agreement
	6.C.c · Boring Location Plan

	7.A · 3364 : Tourism Development Authority
	7.A.a · Tami Richards_TDA

	8.A · 3360 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022
	8.A.a · bocminutes_070522

	8.B · 3353 : Budget Amendments
	8.B.a · 22-23 BA 001 Dare Program
	8.B.b · 22-23 BA 002 Sheriff's Fund Raisers
	8.B.c · 22-23 BA 003 South MIlls Fire Grant from State of NC
	8.B.d · 22-23 BA 004  JCPC & Extension Programming

	8.C · 3355 : School Budget Amendments
	8.C.a · School Budget Amendments

	8.D · 3351 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	8.D.a · JUNE, 22  VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100

	8.E · 3352 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.E.a · DMV Monthly Report September, 22 Renewals

	8.F · 3354 : Tax Collection Report
	8.F.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.G · 3368 : Surplus Property
	8.G.a · Surplus - Sheriff
	8.G.b · Surplus - Library

	8.H · 3359 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults Annual Agreement
	8.H.a · Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant

	11.A · 3347 : Register of Deeds Report
	11.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	11.B · 3363 : Library Report
	11.B.a · 22-06



